
 

 

 
 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Date: November 12, 2025  
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
Location: 1920 Mariposa Street, Suite 310, Fresno, CA 93721 
Zoom Link: https://fresnoeoc.zoom.us/meeting/register/3B8qGmMPRHW4IhN_oaUWNw  
 

AGENDA 
ITEM SUBJECT PRESENTER ACTION 

1. CALL TO ORDER Garabedian, 
Committee Chair 

 

2. 
Page 2 

ROLL CALL 
A. Monthly Attendance Record 

  

3. 
Page 3 OCTOBER 15, 2025, FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  Garabedian, 

Committee Chair Approve 

4. 
Page 8 

AGENCY FINANCIAL AND HEAD START FINANCIAL STATUS 
REPORT SEPTEMBER 2025  
A. Supporting Document - CSBG Organizational Standard 8.7 

Charter Impact  Accept  

5. 
Page 14 

REVISED 2025 AGENCY’S BUDGET  
A. Supporting Document  Charter Impact  Approve  

6. 
Page 17 

STOP LOSS INSURANCE 
A. Supporting Document  Warnes, Staff  Approve  

7. 
Page 19 AGENCY INVESTMENT REPORT  Warnes, Staff  Information 

8. 
Page 20 HEALTH INSURANCE REPORT Warnes, Staff  Information 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Board on any matter related to the Commission 
that is not listed on the agenda.  Limit two minutes per speaker.) 

10. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENT Garabedian, 
Committee Chair  

11. ADJOURNMENT  Garabedian, 
Committee Chair 

 

Note:  NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING: Wednesday, December 10, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. at the Fresno EOC 
Board Room.  

 

https://fresnoeoc.zoom.us/meeting/register/3B8qGmMPRHW4IhN_oaUWNw


January 19-Feb 12-Mar 2-Apr 14-May 27-May 25-Jun 23-Jul 18-Aug 15-Sep 15-Oct 12-Nov 10-Dec Attended
Charles Garabedian O O O O O O O O O O 10/10
Debra Mckenzie O O O O X O O T X T 8/10
Alysia Bonner O O X T T T T X T T 8/10
Rey Leon T X X X X X X T T X 3/10

O-Present X-Absent T-Teleconference

Finance Committee Meeting 
Monthly Attendance Record                                                   

2025

Page 2 of 21



 

 

 
 

 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Date: October 15, 2025  
Time: 5:00 p.m.  
Location: 1920 Mariposa Street, Suite 310, Fresno, CA 93721 
 

MINUTES 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Charles Garabedian, Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

2. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Roll was called and a quorum was established. 
 

 Committee Members:  
Charles Garabedian 
 
Teleconference (T):  
Alysia Bonner  
Debra McKenzie 
 
Absent: 
Rey Leon 
 
 

Staff:  
Steven R. Lewis  
Salam M. Nalia  
Alison Tatem 
Andy Arredondo 
Augie Quiroz 
Chris Erwin 
Elionora Vivanco  
Greg Streets  
Jack Lazzarini (T) 
Jerry Moreno 
 

Jon Escobar  
Joshua Bogdanov 
Michael Balderas (T)  
Patrick Turner 
Sherry Neil (T) 
Steve Warnes 
Teqia Velyines 
 
Charter Impact 
Rebecca Heinricy (T) 
Christopher Fisher (T)  

 Chair Garabedian amended the agenda to move item #7, 2025 Food Services Assessment 
Report Presentation, before item 3, September 15, 2025, Finance Committee Meeting Minutes.  
 

7.  2025 FOOD SERVICES ASSESSMENT REPORT PRESENTATION 
 
Carolyn Ruck, Ruck-Shockey Associates, Inc., consulting team conducted an onsite review from 
July 29-31, 2025. The Fresno EOC Kitchen Assessment Summary outlines efforts to improve 
operational efficiency, sustainability, and cost-effectiveness in its large-scale food service 
operations. The review, identified inefficiencies in workflows, staffing, kitchen layout, inventory 
management, and data tracking. Key findings include inconsistent reporting, underutilized 
technology, and kitchen space constraints. Recommendations focus on standardizing processes, 
optimizing labor, reducing waste, improving inventory control, and fully integrating ChefTEC 
technology.  
 
The kitchen serves diverse programs across four counties, producing 1.6 million meals annually 
with a revenue of $8.97M but operating at a deficit of $1.21M. Strategic initiatives aim to 
generate annual savings of $400,000–$700,000 by enhancing productivity, financial 
transparency, and cost allocation. Suggested improvements include facility upgrades, workflow 

Page 3 of 21



 

 

streamlining, menu engineering, and better financial tracking to align costs with industry 
benchmarks. 
 
Chair Garabedian recommended that the report include both short-term solutions and long-term 
strategic planning. Specifically, actions the organization or food service can take to address 
current deficits. Chair Garabedian stated that overall, the goal is to develop a comprehensive 
strategic plan that not only addresses current needs but also ensures long-term sustainability, 
for the board's review and decision-making. 
 
Steven R. Lewis, Chief Executive Officer, inquired about the challenges of raising meal prices 
given the limitations imposed by current vendor agreements. Ruck explained that the process 
involves balancing menu planning with cost management. While developing menus that meet 
nutritional needs and appeal to customers, the team strives to source the most affordable 
products, but does not always conduct detailed analyses of individual item costs. To effectively 
control expenses, it is important to regularly review costs on a weekly or monthly basis, focusing 
on average costs and full utilization. Implementing strict portion control and inventory 
management is crucial to minimizing waste and ensuring that costs remain within targeted 
ranges. 
Commissioner Bonner expressed appreciation for the thoughtful methodology of the 
presentation, noting that while the agency's primary mission has been to serve the underserved 
and support the community, this approach offers a strategic way to balance service with fiscal 
responsibility. Commissioner Bonner emphasized that the methodology allows the organization 
to serve effectively while also being financially mindful and suggested that efforts like dedicating 
hours or resources should be planned strategically to maximize impact and efficiency. 
 
Lewis explained that addressing the issue is complex because it requires careful evaluation of 
their infrastructure to ensure they can meet their needs. While everyone shares some concern, 
they must also prioritize their mission. Lewis emphasizes his responsibility to manage the budget 
responsibly and ensure quality, warning against cutting corners that could lead to malnutrition.  
 
Salam M. Nalia, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, inquired whether Food Services could operate 
independently if it were to separate from Fresno EOC. Ruck stated that Food Services could 
potentially operate independently with some changes, but it wouldn't be highly profitable. 
Currently, the kitchen's structure and existing contracts limit retail opportunities, as a USDA-
approved kitchen is required to sell or distribute meals outside of contracts. Achieving USDA 
approval would require a significant investment, potentially amounting to the cost of building a 
new kitchen.  
 
Commissioner McKenzie asked about the sources of "other program revenue" listed on the 
financial statements. Joshua Bogdanov, Food Services Operations Director, explained that the 
"other program revenue" includes several contracts, such as the $1.4 million Buster contract, 
which has been moved to third-party revenue to better align with recent board requests. He 
clarified that the data being referenced is from July, prior to these adjustments made to improve 
presentation for the board. 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 

Page 4 of 21



 

 

No action required. 

3. 
 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2025, FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Bonner  Second by: McKenzie  
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
  

4. 
 

AGENCY FINANCIAL AND HEAD START FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT AUGUST  2025  
 
Rebecca Heinricy, Charter Impact Client Finance Director, provided an overview report of the 
Agency Financial Statements and the Head Start Financial Status Report as of August 31, 2025, 
with a revenue of $104.5 million and a total of $104.9 million in expenditures, which is 59% of 
the budget. Although there has been an improvement in financial status as compared to 
operations in 2024, there is still a deficit of $0.34 million as of August. Year-to-date cash 
expenditures this year are $3.6 million lower than expenditures at the same time last year due 
to the cost reduction efforts put in place by the agency.  The program revenue line items 
changed from other revenue to align better with fee-for-service revenue. The budget, actual 
costs, and prior year data have been adjusted accordingly. Historically, other program revenue 
was used to indicate costs within the agency. 
 
Alison Tatem, Head Start Interim Finance Manager, presented the HeadStart/Early HeadStart 
Financial Status Report as of August 31, 2025. Head Start has spent about $23.9 million of its 
$38.5 million, which is 62% of the budget. The Training and Technical Assistance (T&TA) budget 
is $323,827, with $209,956 spent to date, which is 65% of the total budget. Early Head Start 
has spent $4.89 million of its $8.58 million, which is 57% of the budget, with personnel costs at 
54%, and some overspending in supplies, but savings in staffing due to vacant positions. Its 
T&TA budget is 54% spent. The budget presented is as currently approved, but a budget revision 
is being prepared to allow the salary savings to be moved to other budget line items and used for 
construction projects.  
 
Commissioner McKenzie inquired whether the government shutdown is affecting the response 
from the Office of Head Start regarding the approval of the revised budget. Tatem confirmed that 
Head Start is indeed being impacted. 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Bonner   Second by: McKenzie  
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 
 
 
  

Page 5 of 21



 

 

5.  PROGRAM COST BENEFIT UPDATE  
 
Steve Warnes, Finance Officer, provided an overview of the agency’s 2026 Health Plan changes, 
noting a 5% increase in Employer Premium rates while Employee Premium rates remain 
unchanged for the second consecutive year. 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 
 
Motion by: McKenzie  Second by: Bonner 
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 

6.  RFPS FOR FOOD SERVICE PRODUCE SUPPLIER AND LEGAL SERVICES 
 
Chris Erwin, Procurement Director, provided an overview of the RFPs for Food Services Produce 
Supplier and Legal Services. Erwin stated that the Legal Services RFP will be republished to 
attract greater competition and identify additional legal firms that are better aligned with our 
specific requirements.  
 
Commissioner McKenzie requested clarification on the recommended action to approve the 
proposed RFPs, which have already been released. Nalia clarified that the recommended action 
is to ratify. 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Bonner  Second by: McKenzie  
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 

8. 
 

VARIANCE REPORTS 
 
Christopher Fisher, Charter Impact Client Finance Director, presented an overview of the 
Administrative Variance Report through August 2025. Based on the review of the financial 
information, the administrative revenue is $5.9 million, or 62% of the $9.5 million budget, which 
is $240,000 higher than the same period in 2024. The growth is mainly due to a $200,000 
increase in Indirect Cost Recovery and an additional $50,000 in CSBG revenue.  
 
Fisher stated the administrative expenses are at 63% of the recast budget, reflecting strong cost 
control. However, personnel costs are at 70% of the annual budget, indicating slightly higher 
headcount and related expenses than projected. Office expenses are at 82% of the budget due 
to early payments for software licenses, but management expects to stay within the full-year 
target. Insurance costs total $260,000 (36% of the budget), the organization budgeted 
$300,000 for deductibles and settlements, and has incurred $155,000 in administrative costs 
to date.  
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 

Page 6 of 21



 

 

No action required. 
 

9.  FRWDB FISCAL REVIEW LETTERS 
 
Patrick Turner, Training & Employment Services Director, shared that the Fresno Regional 
Workforce Development Board conducted a fiscal report monitoring review for the 2024-2025 
Good Jobs Challenge and the 2024-2025 High Road Training Partnership-Resilient Workforce 
Fund, and is pleased to report that there were no findings or concerns identified during the fiscal 
monitoring review. 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
No action required. 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
No action required. 
 

11. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENT 

Commissioner McKenzie expressed her appreciation for the outstanding work being carried out 
and emphasized that any questions or comments she may have are not intended to be negative. 
Commissioner McKenzie shared her background working with government and philanthropic 
boards and acknowledged that she is still in the process of learning and adapting to this new 
environment. She kindly requested patience and understanding from her colleagues as she 
navigates this transition.  
 
Chair Garabedian thanked Commissioner McKenzie and encouraged her to ask questions, 
emphasizing that her being new is no problem. They welcomed her inquiries to help her better 
understand the organization and appreciated her comments 
 
Commissioner Bonner thanked the staff for their hard work in addressing the deficit over the 
past year and encouraged Commissioner McKenzie to continue asking questions and sharing 
her thoughts, as it can help identify areas to address or improve. 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
No action required. 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting adjourned at 6:06 p.m. 

 

Page 7 of 21



 

 

 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
 
Date: November 12, 2025 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #:  4 Director: N/A 

Subject: Agency Financials and Head Start 
Financial Status Report September 2025 

Officer: Salam Nalia 

 

Recommended Action 

Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee acceptance of the interim consolidated Agency 
Financial Statements and Head Start 0 to 5, as of September 30, 2025.  

CSBG Organizational Standard 

The governing board receives financial reports at each regular meeting that include the 

following per Category 8, Standard 8.7: 

1. Organization-wide report on revenue and expenditure that compares budget to actual; and 

2. Balance sheet/statement of financial position. 

Background 

The following pages have been prepared by Charter Impact for presentation to the Finance 
Committee and reflect their analysis, recommendations, and financial reporting in support of the 
agency’s fiscal oversight. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Acceptance of these financials by the Committee will enable this document to be presented for full 
Board consideration. The Board's oversight of the financial operations of Fresno EOC is a key 
aspect of its fiduciary duty. 
 

 

Page 8 of 21



 

 
Fresno EOC  
Agency financials analysis  
September 2025  
 
Financial review: 
Through the period ending September 30, 2025, total revenue for Fresno EOC is $118.4M or 
68% of the revised 2025 budget.  Total cash revenue is $86.8M or 66% of the 2025 budget.  
By comparison, cash revenue was 72% of actual annual revenue as of September 2024.  In-
kind revenue is 71% of budget and is primarily linked to the WIC, Head Start, and Energy 
programs with the decrease from 2024 being attributed to fewer utility vouchers.   
 
Total expenditure of $118.5M represents 68% of the 2025 budget.  Cash expenditures of 
$86.9M are $4.1M less than they were through the same period of 2024 reflecting the cost 
reduction efforts.  Personnel costs of $53.7M are 72% of the annual budget and are $2.0M 
lower than the prior year’s personnel costs through September.  Program areas reflecting 
reductions in personnel include Administration, Food Services, Transit, Energy Services, and 
Sanctuary.  Cost savings versus 2024 costs are also seen in Travel, Mileage, and Vehicle 
Costs which have been reduced by nearly $1M from a reduction in vehicle costs ($723k) and 
travel reductions ($277k).  The ongoing Federal shutdown is impacting cost obligation / 
expenditure, especially for Head Start which has a budget modification request submitted 
that is pending approval.  Without this approval, the funds cannot be obligated.  Head Start 
costs for 2025 must be obligated by December 31, 2025. 
 
Fresno EOC’s deficit continues to decrease as the year progresses.  As of September, the 
deficit is at $97k prior to grant asset depreciation and at $157k after grant asset depreciation.  
To improve cash flow and to begin to restore reserves, Fresno EOC must operate at a surplus.   
 
Cash at the end of September 2025 decreased to $2.1M, accounts receivable increased to 
$14.3M, and Property Plant & Equipment increased to $13.9M reflecting the purchase of the 
R Street facility ($1.2M).  Similarly, Notes Payable increased $1M for the loan associated with 
the R Street acquisition.  Excluding grant funded fixed assets, Fresno EOC’s fund balance 
continues to be negative. 
 
Financial summary: 

• Cost-saving efforts have been critical to improving Fresno EOC’s financial position 
and must continue, especially in programs running a deficit. 

• Cash on hand is insufficient to cover current obligations. 
• New sources of unrestricted funding / contributions need to be identified.  

Page 9 of 21



Unaudited - For Internal Use Only.

A B A - B C D B - D
 BUDGET 
(revised) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

JAN - DEC September VARIANCE BALANCE JAN - DEC September 2025 vs 2024
2025 2025 (TARGET 75%) REMAINING 2024 2024 Differences

REVENUES AND SUPPORT  
GRANT REVENUE (without CBSG) 99,690,068$        62,465,723$    63% 37,224,346$    85,276,670$       62,994,413$         (528,691)$       
GRANT REVENUE - CSBG 2,039,380 1,542,770 76% 496,610 2,077,661 975,638 567,132
FEE FOR SERVICE REVENUE 27,422,003 21,793,185 79% 5,628,818 28,890,685 22,280,270 (487,085)
OTHER REVENUE 1,321,878 904,411 68% 417,467 3,872,531 573,099 331,312
DONATION CONTRIBUTIONS 41,112 64,837 158% (23,725) 72,798 56,344 8,493

TOTAL CASH REVENUE 130,514,440$      86,770,926$    66% 43,743,515$    120,190,345$     86,879,765$         (108,839)$       
IN KIND REVENUE 44,209,541 31,597,472 71% 12,612,069 50,172,726 38,684,571 (7,087,099)

TOTAL REVENUE & SUPPORT 174,723,981$      118,368,399$  68% 56,355,583$    170,363,071$     125,564,337$       (7,195,938)$   

EXPENDITURES
PERSONNEL COSTS 74,825,960$        53,677,723$    72% 21,148,237$    73,942,643$       55,662,258$         (1,984,536)$   
ADMIN SERVICES 8,203,952 6,134,657 75% 2,069,295 7,853,154 5,815,378 319,280
CONTRACT SERVICES 12,426,650 8,721,483 70% 3,705,167 12,033,757 9,313,640 (592,157)
FACILITY COSTS 11,267,390 5,517,334 49% 5,750,056 6,897,761 5,260,633 256,701
TRAVEL, MILEAGE, VEHICLE COSTS 2,837,936 1,691,779 60% 1,146,157 3,336,914 2,688,035 (996,257)
EQUIPMENT COSTS (minus depreciation) 4,903,141 550,722 11% 4,352,419 2,038,384 1,165,411 (614,689)
DEPRECIATION - AGENCY FUNDED 296,000 166,169 56% 129,831 278,075 216,613 (50,444)
OFFICE EXPENSE 2,130,603 2,173,718 102% (43,115) 3,373,218 2,683,331 (509,613)
INSURANCE 2,171,659 1,137,601 52% 1,034,058 1,089,921 799,907 337,694
PROGRAM SUPPLIES & CLIENT COSTS 9,740,801 6,899,684 71% 2,841,117 9,365,169 6,880,242 19,442
OTHER COSTS 2,064,512 197,445 10% 1,867,067 748,063 464,333 (266,888)

TOTAL CASH EXPENDITURES 130,868,603$      86,868,315$    66% 44,000,289$    120,957,059$     90,949,783$         (4,081,468)$   
IN KIND EXPENSES 44,209,541 31,597,472 71% 12,612,069 50,172,726 38,684,571 (7,087,099)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 175,078,144$      118,465,787$  68% 56,612,358$    171,129,785$     129,634,354$       (11,168,567)$ 

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (354,163)$            (97,388)$          (256,775)$        (766,714)$           (4,070,018)$          3,972,629$     

OTHER INCOME / EXPENSE
TRANSIT GRANT ASSET DEPRECIATION (78,805)$              (59,522)            (162,965) (135,597)               

NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (432,968)$            (156,911)$        (276,057)          (929,679)$           (4,205,615)$          4,048,704       

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Period Ending September 30, 2025 (75% Variance)

Page 10 of 21



Unaudited - For Internal Use Only.

2025 2024 Differences
ASSETS

CASH & INVESTMENTS 2,124,806$             5,024,441$    (2,899,635)$  
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 14,340,409 11,985,077 2,355,332
PREPAIDS/DEPOSITS 530,125 516,171 13,954
INVENTORIES 208,725 203,823 4,902
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 13,934,072 13,200,215 733,857
NOTES RECEIVABLE (net) (0) (0) 0

TOTAL ASSETS 31,138,135$           30,929,726$  208,409$      

LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 2,736,651$             5,536,379$    (2,799,728)$  
ACCRUED PAYROLL LIABILITIES 5,215,586 6,246,235 (1,030,648)
DEFERRED REVENUE 3,505,307 3,880,238 (374,932)
NOTES PAYABLE 6,609,712 803,055 5,806,657
HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE 3,443,155 6,975,372 (3,532,217)
OTHER LIABILITIES 708,232 890,343 (182,112)

TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,218,643$           24,331,624$  (2,112,981)$  

FUND BALANCE
CURRENT OPERATING EARNINGS (YTD) (97,388)$                (4,070,018)$   3,972,629$   
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (1,354,137) 152,526 (1,506,663)
REVOLVING LOAN FUND 556,268 556,268 0
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 9,814,749 9,959,326 (144,576)

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 8,919,493$             6,598,103$    2,321,390$   

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 31,138,136$           30,929,726$  208,409$      

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as of September 30, 2025

Page 11 of 21



Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission
Head Start/Early Head Start Financial Status
Monthly Report
September 30, 2025

Description
Annual Budget Current Expenses YTD Expenses Balance 

Remaining
Annual 
Budget

Current 
Expenses

YTD 
Expenses

Balance 
Remaining

Personnel $19,633,565 $1,249,528 $13,131,591 $6,501,974 -          -         -           -           
Fringe Benefits $7,856,139 $175,818 $4,616,353 $3,239,786 -          -         -           -           
Total Personnel $27,489,704 $1,425,346 $17,747,944 $9,741,760 -         -        -          -          

Travel $0 $0 $0 $0 71,440     7,190      31,724      39,716      

Equipment $200,000 $0 $36,568 $163,432 -              -             -               -               

Supplies $473,752 $26,183 $397,612 $76,140 4,000       -             4,758        (758)         

Contractual $2,410,983 $10,887 $1,636,870 $774,113 -              -             -               -               

Facilities /Construction

Other:
     Food Cost $858,503 $97,609 $951,079 ($92,576)
     Transportation $638,844 $64,051 $470,706 $168,138
     Staff Mileage $71,893 $3,730 $98,910 ($27,017)
     Field Trips, including Transportation $6,045 $150 $6,727 ($682)
     Space $716,627 ($18,464) $383,966 $332,661
     Utilities / Telephone / Internet $787,680 ($34,346) $498,064 $289,616
     Ground Maintenance / Janitorial $745,200 $49,397 $526,759 $218,441
     Security Services $144,000 $1,556 $37,817 $106,183
     Repair/Maintenance Building $100,000 $2,358 $125,868 ($25,868)
     Repair/Maintenance Equipment $21,078 $0 $49,704 ($28,626)
     Property & Liability Insurance $130,000 ($80,248) $174,541 ($44,541)

     Parent Involvement / CWPC $37,000 $1,130 $25,054 $11,946

     Other Costs* $161,330 $6,830 $129,247 $32,083

    Staff & Parent Training $11,200 $55 $8,874 $2,326 218,948   1,274      162,850    56,098      

Total Direct Charges $35,003,839 1,556,222.47   $23,306,309 $11,697,530 294,388 8,463    199,332  95,056    

Total Indirect Charges $3,500,384 $155,622 $2,326,974 $1,173,410 $29,439 $846 $19,933 $9,506

Total Federal Expenditures $38,504,223 1,711,844.47   $25,633,283 $12,870,940 $323,827 9,309    219,265  $104,562
% of Annual Budget Expended to Date 67% 68%

Non-Federal Share $9,626,056 $516,418 $4,759,052 $4,867,003 $80,957 $2,327 $54,816 $26,140
49%

*Other Costs Include: Credit Card Expenses: Credit card statement dated 9/1/25-9/30/25
PROPERTY TAXES September 2025 expenses:
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
SUBSCRIPTION EXPENSE CWPC - Other 743$                      CWPC Meeting- Election Meeting
ADVERTISEMENT - OTHER Program Supplies - Kitchen 370$                      Walmart Kitchen supplies 
DUES - ORGANIZATIONS Bottled Water 140$                      Debt collection - Sparklettes
RECRUITMENT Internet 1,530$                   Frontier Communication & Comcast - Internet  Service
MEETING COSTS - INTERNAL Telephone 1,186$                   Frontier Communication & Comcast - Telephone Service
LINENS / LAUNDRY Staff Training 240$                      Steven Lewis trainings 
EMPLOYEE EVENT Out of state travel 5,599$                   Child Plus scramble 
ADVERTISEMENT - RECRUITMENT 9,809$                   
POSTAGE/EXPRESS MAIL
PRINTING
CONTRACT SERVICES - PHYSICALS
FIRST AID (INCLUDES WORKERS COMP)
FINGERPRINTING / BACKGROUND CHECK

Head Start - Basic Head Start - T & TA

Last Updated:11/5/2025
Edited by: HCG

Page 12 of 21



Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission
Head Start/Early Head Start Financial Status
Monthly Report
September 30, 2025

Description
Personnel
Fringe Benefits
Total Personnel

Travel

Equipment

Supplies

Contractual

Facilities /Construction

Other:
     Food Cost
     Transportation
     Staff Mileage
     Field Trips, including Transportation
     Space
     Utilities / Telephone / Internet
     Ground Maintenance / Janitorial 
     Security Services
     Repair/Maintenance Building
     Repair/Maintenance Equipment
     Property & Liability Insurance

     Parent Involvement / CWPC

     Other Costs*

    Staff & Parent Training 

Total Direct Charges

Total Indirect Charges

Total Federal Expenditures 
% of Annual Budget Expended to Date

Non-Federal Share

*Other Costs Include:
PROPERTY TAXES
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
SUBSCRIPTION EXPENSE
ADVERTISEMENT - OTHER
DUES - ORGANIZATIONS
RECRUITMENT
MEETING COSTS - INTERNAL
LINENS / LAUNDRY
EMPLOYEE EVENT
ADVERTISEMENT - RECRUITMENT
POSTAGE/EXPRESS MAIL
PRINTING
CONTRACT SERVICES - PHYSICALS
FIRST AID (INCLUDES WORKERS COMP)
FINGERPRINTING / BACKGROUND CHECK

Annual Budget Current Expenses YTD Expenses Balance 
Remaining

Annual 
Budget

Current 
Expenses

YTD 
Expenses

Balance 
Remaining

$5,152,890 $276,290 $3,001,199 $2,151,691 -            -           -         -            
1,529,340      $37,853 $948,121 581,219       -            -           -         -            

6,682,230    $314,143 $3,949,320 $2,732,910 -           -         -        -           

-                    -                         -                      -                  17,160       2,002       9,865      7,295         

50,000           -                         -                      50,000         -               -                

131,044         2,395                  155,981           (24,937)        1,000        -              1,023      (23)            

204,519         2,233                  114,407           90,112         4,000        (1,314)      4,000         

32,905           $17,939.01 75,613 (42,708)        
7,310             $173.61 2,101 5,209           

16,101           $2,470.46 46,274             (30,173)        
455                -                         -                      455              

174,911         -$6,762.76 96,244             78,667         
166,920         $12,521.76 148,772           18,148         
148,208         $10,422.57 99,920             48,288         
36,000           $231.28 8,449               27,551         
50,000           $712.51 28,555             21,445         
5,787             $3,900.00 15,971             (10,184)        

47,700           $3,553.71 29,274             18,426         

7,440             $312.72 8,230               (790)            

33,525           $1,802.31 26,150             7,375           

2,800             $13.74 2,319               481              135,450     1598.11 76,345    59,105       

7,797,855    51,919               $4,807,581 2,990,274  157,610   2,286      87,233  $70,377

$779,785 $5,192 $480,758 $299,027 $15,761 $228 $8,723 $7,038

$8,577,640 57,111               $5,288,339 $3,289,301 $173,371 2,514      $95,956 $77,415
62% 55%

$2,144,410 $366,048 $3,741,070 $0 $43,343 $628 $23,989 $19,354
174%

Credit Card Expenses: Credit card statement dated 9/1/25-9/30/25
September 2025 expenses:

CWPC - Other 186$                       CWPC Meeting- Election Meeting
Program Supplies - Kitchen 49$                         Walmart Kitchen supplies 
Internet 135$                       Frontier Communication & Comcast - Internet  Service
Telephone 221$                       Frontier Communication & Comcast - Telephone Service
Staff Training 14$                         Steven Lewis trainings 
Staff Training 46$                         Health and Mental Health Services meeting-9/30/25
Out of state travel 1,709$                    Child Plus scramble 
Software Licenses 3,900$                    Digital Curriculum - 1 year subscription 
Advertisement - Recruitment 50$                         Facebook ad - AMOR EHS

6,263$                    

Early Head Start - Basic Early Head Start - T & TA 

Last Updated:11/5/2025
Edited by: HCG

Page 13 of 21



 

 

 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
 
Date: November 12, 2025 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #:  5 Director: N/A 

Subject: Revised 2025 Agency’s Budget Officer: Salam M. Nalia 

 

Recommended Action 

Deputy Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee approval of the 2025 revised consolidated 
agency budget. 

Background 

This revised budget reflects updated financial projections based on current funding, program 
needs, and operational costs as of September 30, 2025. Adjustments were made to align 
resources with strategic priorities and ensure continued impact and sustainability. The revision was 
developed in collaboration with program and finance teams to guide spending for the remainder of 
the fiscal year. 
 
Conclusion 
 
If approved this budget will be put before the Board of Commissioners. Upon Board approval, this 
budget will be used in conjunction with the interim financial statements to keep the Board apprised 
on the agency’s financial position.  

Page 14 of 21



Fresno EOC 

Agency budget reforecast (September actuals) - 2025 

Total 2025 cash revenue forecast of $129,935,158 is ($579,282) less than the mid-year 
forecast presented in August. The primary drivers of the decrease in revenue are Health 
Services ($348,690), Energy Weatherization and Utility Assistance ($282,546), and 
Transit ($281,829), offset by a $564,714 increase in LCC revenue. Total cash revenue is 
$9,236,249, or 8%, greater than 2024. There has been no change to the in-kind revenue 
forecast. 

Total 2025 cash expenditures of $129,933,243 are ($935,360) less than the mid-year 
forecast presented in August. Personnel costs are forecasted to end ($930,785) less 
than the mid-year forecast, followed by Insurance of ($735,504) and Equipment costs 
of ($293,757), offset by an increase in forecasted Facility costs of $605,495 and 
Contract Services of $358,596. Cash expenditures are forecasted to be $8,976,184 
greater than the prior year, with the increase primarily attributable to Facility Costs of 
$4,975,124 and Equipment Costs of $2,571,000, offset by a reduction in Office 
Expense of ($1,235,107) and Travel, Mileage, and Vehicle Costs of ($512,712). 

The result is a forecasted near break-even operating surplus of $1,915 for 2025. This is 
a $356,078 improvement from the mid-year forecast and a $260,065 improvement over 
the prior year deficit. Several programs are relying on CSBG funds to operate at 
breakeven, including Advance Peace, Food Services, Food Distribution, Foster 
Grandparents, LCC, Sanctuary, Training & Employment, VAC, and Administration.  

 
Impact on Fresno EOC: 

The Agency has already reduced its operating deficit from the prior year by $3,972,629. 
These cost saving efforts have been critical to improving Fresno EOC’s financial 
position. Additionally, the Agency is forecasting an operating surplus of $99,303 in the 
final quarter of 2025. Operating at a surplus must continue to improve cash flow and 
begin to restore reserves. The continuing federal government shutdown is being 
monitored, as it could affect the forecast for multiple programs. 

Page 15 of 21



Unaudited - For Internal Use Only.

A B B - A C B - C

JUNE 
REVISED 
BUDGET

 SEPTEMBER 
REVISED 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

JAN - DEC JAN - DEC VARIANCE Variance JAN - DEC 2025 vs 2024
2025 2025 (TARGET 100%) $ 2024 Differences

REVENUES AND SUPPORT  
GRANT REVENUE (without CBSG) 99,690,067$    100,228,594$   101% 538,527$         85,276,671$    14,951,923$   
GRANT REVENUE - CSBG 2,039,380$      2,077,661$        102% 38,281$           2,077,661$      -$                
FEE FOR SERVICE REVENUE 18,282,912$    17,649,349$      97% (633,563)$        21,050,339$    (3,400,990)$    
     ADMINISTRATIVE INCOME 8,203,952$      8,477,502$        103% 273,550$         7,840,346$      637,156$        
OTHER REVENUE 1,321,878$      544,497$           41% (777,381)$        3,939,489$      (3,394,992)$    
     PARKING INCOME 79,380$           88,263$             111% 8,883$             95,331$           (7,068)$           
     RENTAL INCOME 855,759$         834,101$           97% (21,658)$          346,274$         487,827$        
DONATION CONTRIBUTIONS 41,112$           35,191$             N/A (5,921)$            72,798$           (37,607)$         

TOTAL CASH REVENUE 130,514,440$  129,935,158$   100% (579,282)$        120,698,909$  9,236,249$     
IN KIND REVENUE 44,209,541$    44,209,541$      100% -$                 50,172,726$    (5,963,185)$    

TOTAL REVENUE & SUPPORT 174,723,981$  174,144,699$   100% (579,282)$        170,871,635$  3,273,064$     

EXPENDITURES
PERSONNEL COSTS 74,825,960$    73,895,175$      99% (930,785)$        $73,942,643 (47,468)$         
ADMIN SERVICES 8,203,952$      8,477,502$        103% 273,550$         $7,853,154 624,348$        
CONTRACT SERVICES 12,426,649$    12,785,245$      103% 358,596$         $12,033,757 751,488$        
FACILITY COSTS 11,267,390$    11,872,885$      105% 605,495$         $6,897,761 4,975,124$     
TRAVEL, MILEAGE, VEHICLE COSTS 2,837,936$      2,824,202$        100% (13,734)$          $3,336,914 (512,712)$       
EQUIPMENT COSTS (minus depreciation) 4,903,141$      4,609,384$        94% (293,757)$        $2,038,384 2,571,000$     
DEPRECIATION - AGENCY FUNDED 296,000$         296,000$           100% -$                 $278,075 17,925$          
OFFICE EXPENSE 2,130,603$      2,138,111$        100% 7,508$             $3,373,218 (1,235,107)$    
INSURANCE 2,171,659$      1,436,155$        66% (735,504)$        $1,089,921 346,234$        
PROGRAM SUPPLIES & CLIENT COSTS 9,740,801$      9,627,816$        99% (112,985)$        $9,365,168 262,648$        
OTHER COSTS 2,064,512$      1,970,768$        95% (93,744)$          $748,063 1,222,705$     

TOTAL CASH EXPENDITURES 130,868,603$  129,933,243$   99% (935,360)$        120,957,059$  8,976,184$     
IN KIND EXPENSES 44,209,541$    44,209,541$      100% -$                 50,172,726$    (5,963,185)$    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 175,078,144$  174,142,784$   99% (935,360)$        171,129,785$  3,012,999$     

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (354,163)$        1,915$               356,078$         (258,150)$        260,065$        

OTHER INCOME / EXPENSE
TRANSIT GRANT ASSET DEPRECIATION (78,805)$          (78,805)              -                       (162,965) 84,160            

NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (432,968)$        ($76,890) 356,078           (421,115)$        344,225          

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
REVISED BUDGET

Period Ending December 31, 2025 (100% Variance)

Page 16 of 21



 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Date:  November 12, 2025 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #: 6 Director: Salam Nalia 

Subject: Stop Loss Insurance Officer: Steve Warnes 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends Committee approval for full Board consideration of Berkshire Hathaway as the 
Stop Loss Insurance carrier for Fresno EOC’s health insurance. If this action is approved, the Stop 
Loss Insurance premium will be $1,329,652 for plan year 2026.  

Background 

The purpose of stop-loss insurance in a self-funded plan is to act as a financial safety net against 
high-cost or catastrophic medical claims, preventing the Agency from being financially devastated 
by a few very expensive claims. Stop-loss insurance provides financial stability, allowing companies 
to take advantage of the potential cost savings of self-funding without bearing the full risk of 
unlimited liability.  

Increased stop loss claims in 2025 have resulted in the current carrier Voya to propose rate 
increases of almost 50% for the next year.  Fresno EOC’s insurance broker, Alliant, recommends 
transitioning the Stop Loss program to Berkshire (Option 2) and increasing the deductible to 
$250,000 (from $225,000).  These changes would result in a 6% premium decrease (annual 
savings of $72K) over Voya’s current rate, and 11% premium decrease over Voya’s proposed 2026 
plan rates.  

Berkshire is requiring a Laser on one participant; the full cost is included in the total premium 
analysis. Furthermore, the quote from Berkshire also includes the No New Laser at renewal and 
50% rate cap provision for 2027 which the current Voya renewal option does not. 

Fiscal Impact 

If approved, Fresno EOC will have stop loss coverage in place, in annual premiums up to 
$1,329,652 inclusive of laser deductible. 

Page 17 of 21



Current
Renewal
(Revised)

Renewal
(Option 1)

Renewal
(Option 2)

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

Voya Voya Voya Voya Berkshire Berkshire Berkshire
Individual Stop Loss 
Line(s) of Coverage Med & Rx Med & Rx Med & Rx Med & Rx Med & Rx Med & Rx Med & Rx
Contract Type 84/12 96/12 96/12 96/12 36/12 36/12 36/12
Annual Maximum Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited
Terminals Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not included Not included Not included
Individual Stop Loss Level $225,000 $225,000 $250,000 $275,000 $225,000 $250,000 $275,000
Specific Advancement Included Included Included Included Included Included Included
Plan Document Mirroring Included Included Included Included Included Included Included
Lasers None None None None $600,000 $600,000 $600,000

NNL + 50% rate 
cap

N/A N/A N/A NNL + 50% rate 
cap

NNL + 50% rate 
cap

NNL + 50% rate 
cap

Individual Stop Loss Fees: # EEs

Employee Only 239 $69.26 $113.14 $108.93 $103.85 $74.69 $60.93 $53.58
Employee & Family 289 $192.44 $322.68 $311.77 $298.05 $254.57 $217.15 $194.05

Aggregate Stop Loss Fees: 528 $3.03 $3.17 $3.42 $3.52 $3.17 $3.43 $3.54
AmWins Gene Therapy Program: 528 $1.99 $4.75 $4.75 $4.75 $4.75 $4.75 $4.75

$1,051,778 $1,493,721 $1,445,395 $1,383,878 $1,147,241 $979,652 $879,158
n/a 441,943 393,617 332,100 95,463 (72,126) (172,620)
n/a 42.02% 37.42% 31.58% 9.08% -6.86% -16.41%
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
n/a $1,493,721 $1,445,395 $1,383,878 $1,522,241 $1,329,652 $1,204,158 

Rates

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission
Stop Loss Renewal Options

Specific & Aggregate Premium

Vendor

Current Total Annual Premium includes the Organ Transplant Carveout that is not being renewed

Adjustment to modify the Deductible (by carrier)

# of Claims Covered by Premium Adjustment 

Annual Total Premium + Laser Exposure

Total Annual Premium Combined
Annual Increase/(decrease) - $
Annual Increase/(decrease) - %

Page 18 of 21



 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Date: November 12, 2025 Program: Finance  

Agenda Item #: 7 Director: Steven Warnes 

Subject: Agency Investment Report  Officer: Salam M. Nalia 

 

Background  
 
The information is presented to keep the Committee apprised on the status of the Agency’s 
investment accounts.  These investment balances are used to support the accrued vacation 
liability, the deferred revenue balances, and the credit card obligation.  As of September 30, 2025 
the investment account balance was: 
 

 
 
Total annual interest expected from these fixed income investments is $36,943 providing an average 
rate of 3.25%.  The interest rate received on the Corporate Fixed Income investment is 4.45%; this 
holding will mature in 2026.  The US Treasury Notes and Certificates of Deposit have interest rates 
between 2.25% and 4.85%; and a tiered maturity date structure to provide for both shorter-term 
maturities and longer investments. The latest maturity is due in February 2027.   
 
The Agency has a debt service account at Self-Help Federal Credit Union which is not included in the 
table above.  The account balance is $446,543 and the current interest rate is 2.1%.  This account, 
including any interest earned, is being used to make payments on the $5 million loan. 
 
Cash in the Wells Fargo account will be transferred to Regions Bank where it will be invested in a CD 
providing collateral for Regions Bank to issue credit cards. 
 
 

Wells Fargo
Cash & Cash Equivalents                 299,502 
Corporate Bonds                 162,980 
Government Bonds                 619,434 
Certificates of Deposit (CD)                 351,845 
Stocks                   18,542 
Total  $         1,452,303 
Minus unrealized gains on CDs                        321 
General Ledger balance  $         1,451,982 

Page 19 of 21



 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Date: November 12, 2025 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #:  8 Director: Steven Warnes 

Subject: Health Insurance Report Officer: Salam M. Nalia 

 

Recommended Action 

The information is presented to keep the Committee apprised on the fiscal status of the Health 
Plan benefit offered to full-time employees. 

Background 

At September 30, 2025 the health insurance reserve of $3.4 million will cover approximately 3.1 
months of average expenditures. Contributions from programs and employees for 2025 total 
$9,017,519 while the Fund paid out $9,797,324 in expenses. 

Plan income is 6% lower than last year’s level due to a 12% decrease in total enrollment.  Claims 
paid expenses have increased by 6% over last year, while other plan expenses have increased by 
4%. Reimbursements from our Stop-Loss coverage are currently $895,639 but are expected to end 
the year greater than last year’s $972,913. 

Changes to the health insurance plan in 2022 through 2026 include: 

• Effective January 2022: Tele-health service was added and 1% increase in Program 
premiums and an average 8% increase to Employee premiums.  

• Effective January 2023: Restructured the wellness program to include more employees; 
replaced wellness discounted premium by an incentive program available to all employees.  
5.5% increase in Program premiums. 

• Effective January 2024: Kaiser HMO plan offered as an alternative to our existing PPO plan.  
Program and Employee premiums will increase by 8%. 

• Effective January 2025: Employee premiums were unchanged, Program premiums were 
increased by 4%. 

• Effective January 2026: Employee premiums were unchanged for the second year, Program 
premiums were increased by 5%. 

This table presents a sample of the monthly health insurance premium rates for 2026.  Rates vary 
depending on the level of coverage selected. Rates for the PPO and HMO options are shown 
however, a high-deductible option is available at a 40% lower cost to the employee. 

Page 20 of 21



 

 

  Agency Employee Total Premium 

Employee Only $756 $162 $918 
EE +Child(ren) $1,365 $291 $1,656 
EE + Family $1,811 $387 $2,198 
EE + Spouse $1,517 $324 $1,841 

 

Page 21 of 21


	1. Finance Committee Meeting Agenda 11.12.25
	2. Monthly Attendance Record
	Finance Committee

	3. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 10.15.25.
	4_1. Staff Report Agency Financials
	4_2. Fresno EOC Sept 2025 financial narrative
	4_3. Sept Agency Financials
	inc stmt
	bal sheet

	4_4. September 2025 HS EHS Financials
	5_1 Staff Report Revised Agency Budget
	5_2. 2025 September Budget Reforecast - Executive Summary 3 (002)
	Fresno EOC
	Impact on Fresno EOC:

	5_3. September Budget Reforecast Income Statement (004)
	inc stmt

	6_1. Staff Report - Stop Loss Coverage 11.12.25
	6_2. Stop Loss Renewal
	7. Staff Report Agency Investments
	8. Staff Report Health Plan



